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EXPLANATORY NOTE

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&irares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “PrefeStock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common pastrigiinterests as “Common Units” and the OperaBagnerships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units.” References to “aed “our’mean the Company and the Operating Partnershilectiokly, unless the conte
indicates otherwise.

The Company conducts virtually all of its activitithrough the Operating Partnership and is its geleeralpartner. The partnerst
agreement provides that the Operating Partnersilipassume and pay when due, or reimburse the Coymnfir payment of, all costs a
expenses relating to the ownership and operatiénsrofor the benefit of, the Operating Partnershijpe partnership agreement furt
provides that all expenses of the Company are de¢mlee incurred for the benefit of the OperatirgtiFership.

Certain information contained herein is presentedfaOctober 21, 2013the latest practicable date for financial infotima prior to ths
filing of this Quarterly Report.

This report combines the Quarterly Reports on Fb@¥Q for the period ended September 30, 26fihe Company and the Operal
Partnership. We believe combining the quarterlyregpinto this single report results in the follogibenefits:

» combined reports better reflect how managemenfrarestors view the business as a single operatiitg

» combined reports enhance investors' understandirtjeoCompany and the Operating Partnership by lemathem to view th
business as a whole and in the same manner as emaeatj

e combined reports are more efficient for the Compang the Operating Partnership and result in savimgime, effort and expen:
and

« combined reports are more efficient for investgrgduducing duplicative disclosure and providingragke document for their revie

To help investors understand the significant ddferes between the Company and the Operating Paripgthis report presents
following separate sections for each of the Compartythe Operating Partnership:

» Consolidated Financial Stateme

» the following Notes to Consolidated Financial Sta¢ats
* Note 4- Investments in and Advances to Affilia
* Note 8- Noncontrolling Interests; al
* Note 13- Earnings Per Share and Per L

» Item 4 -Controls and Procedures; :

* Item 6 - Certifications of CEO and CFO Pursuanections 302 and 906 of the Sarba@esey Act.
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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

September 30, December 31,

2013 2012
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 403,55t % 345,61
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,756,55. 3,172,10
Development in process 56,49¢ 21,19¢
Land held for development 112,07¢ 115,41¢
4,328,68 3,654,33!
Less-accumulated depreciation (981,607) (903,83)
Net real estate assets 3,347,08! 2,750,49:
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale 16,31¢ 129,40(
Cash and cash equivalents 31,68¢ 13,78:
Restricted cash 15,24¢ 19,70:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,532 $2848, respectively 30,83¢ 23,07:
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&346 and $182, respectively 26,29: 25,47:
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,177 and $813, respectively 123,04° 111,23
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deaéfd 35,85¢ 66,80(
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdared amortization of $90,241 and $75,863, respelsti 227,82t 166,00¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaiortization of $12,835 and $12,318,
respectively 42,67t 44, 45¢
Total Assets $ 3,896,868 $ 3,350,422
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 2,050,06 $ 1,859,16
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedbil 208,53t 172,14¢
Financing obligations 28,19: 29,35¢
Total Liabilities 2,286,78 2,060,66!
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh 103,94¢ 124,86
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares;

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeSiiliquidation preference $1,000 per share), 29,0

shares issued and outstanding 29,077 29,077
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authoshares;

89,910,944 and 80,311,437 shares issued and aditeganespectively 89¢ 80:<
Additional paid-in capital 2,371,92! 2,040,301
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders (911,949 (897,419
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,009 (12,629

Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,484,95! 1,160,14
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 21,17¢ 4,75¢

Total Equity 1,506,12 1,164,89:
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity $ 389,86 $ 3,350,42

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun



Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rental and other revenues $ 147,29 $ 123,41t $ 41596 $ 368,02
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 55,36¢ 45,90« 151,80: 134,10:
Depreciation and amortization 48,12« 37,04: 130,39( 110,65t
General and administrative 8,96¢ 9,72t 27,94¢ 28,29¢
Total operating expenses 112,45¢ 92,67( 310,14( 273,05t
Interest expense:
Contractual 22,68: 22,91( 67,87¢ 70,30¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 96° 907 2,86( 2,70¢
Financing obligations 26 (20%) 87 (357)
23,67: 23,61 70,82¢ 72,66
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,582 1,91¢ 4,98z 5,88:
Losses on debt extinguishment 32 — (196) (973
1,55( 1,91¢ 4,78¢ 4,91(
Income from continuing operations before dispositin of property and condominiums and acquisition of
controlling interest in and equity in earnings/(loses) of unconsolidated affiliates 12,71« 9,052 39,78: 27,22:
Gains/(losses) on disposition of property 34 — 3 —
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums — 80 — 25t
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest in unsolidated affiliate 7,451 — 7,451 —
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis (3,179 1,324 (1,829 2,67(C
Income from continuing operations 17,02¢ 10,45¢ 45,40t 30,147
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations 1,09¢ 2,40 3,84: 9,02
Impairments of real estate assets — — (2,199 —
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 37,94¢ 22,93¢ 52,35! 29,45t
39,04: 25,34( 54,00z 38,47¢
Net income 56,06¢ 35,79¢ 99,40 68,62¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership (1,88¢9) (1,659 (3,719 (3,16€)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim consolidated affiliates (209) (159 (599) (56€)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,88)) (2,88))
Net income available for common stockholders $ 5334¢ $ 33357 $ 9322( $ 63,01
Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1¢ $ 01z $ 04¢ % 0.3t
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.4 0.32 0.62 0.4¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 061 $ 044 $ 111 $ 0.84
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic 87,46 76,59( 83,79: 74,70:
Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1¢ $ 01z $ 04¢ % 0.3t
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.4: 0.31 0.62 0.4¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 061 $ 04: $ 111 $ 0.84
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dilute 90,76¢ 80,49t 87,44: 78,56¢
Dividends declared per Common Share $ 0.42t $ 0.42t $ 127 $ 1.27¢
Net income available for common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 15697 $ 9,211 $ 41247 $ 26,36¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 37,65¢ 24,14¢ 51,97: 36,64¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 5334¢ $ 3335 $ 9322( $ 63,01

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Comprehensive income:

Net income $ 56,066 $ 3579 $ 99,407 $ 68,62¢
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finapbiond 97 (103) 39¢ 482
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (1,799 (3,337) 4,801 (10,429
Amortization of cash flow hedges 84cC 791 2,42¢ 2,25(
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (861) (2,647 7,62¢ (7,692
Total comprehensive income 55,20 33,14¢ 107,03: 60,93«
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (2,099 (1,819 (4,306 (3,739
Comprehensive income attributable to common stodens $ 5311 § 31,331 § 102,72 $ 57,20

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2012 80,311,43 $ 803 $ 29,077 $ 2,040,300 $ (12,62 $ 4,75 % (897,419 $ 1,164,89
Issuances of Common Stock, net of tax withholdings 8,660,541 87 — 305,51« — — — 305,60:
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 789,14+ — — 28,78¢ — — — 28,78¢
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — (107,75() (107,75()
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — (1,88)) (1,88))
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value — — (8,570 — — — (8,570
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates — — — — (40€) — (40¢)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests in colidated
affiliates — — — — 16,24( — 16,24(
Issuances of restricted stock 151,63( — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture (1,819 9 — 5,881 — — — 5,89¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intéee the
Operating Partnership — — — — — (3,719 (3,719
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese
consolidated affiliates — — — — 593 (599 —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — 99,407 99,407
Other comprehensive income — — — 7,62 — — 7,62
Total comprehensive income 107,03:
Balance at September 30, 2013 8991094 $ 89¢ $ 29,077 $ 2,371,920 $ (5,00) $ 21,17¢  $ (911,949 $ 1,506,12:
Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2011 72,647,69 $ 726 3 29,077 $ 1,80399 $ (5,73 $ 4,646 $ (845,85) $  986,85¢
Issuances of Common Stock, net of tax withholdings 5,701,97. 57 — 186,61° — — — 186,67«
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 21,36¢ — — 731 — — — 731
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — (95,12 (95,12
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — (1,887) (1,887)
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value — — (12,48t — — — (12,48%)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates — — — — (663) — (669)
Issuances of restricted stock 158,88! — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture 2 — 6,46: — — — 6,46
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the
Operating Partnership — — — — — (3,16€) (3,16€)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates — — — — 56€ (56€) —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — 68,62¢ 68,62¢
Other comprehensive loss — — — (7,692) — — (7,692)
Total comprehensive income 60,93¢
Balance at September 30, 2012 78,529,92 $ 78 3 29,077 $ 198532 $ (13,420 $ 454¢ 3% (877,96) $ 1,128,34!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2013 2012

Operating activities:
Net income $ 99,407 $ 68,62¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 133,55¢ 117,76«
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities 25¢ 35¢
Share-based compensation expense 5,89¢ 6,46¢
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable 1,02¢ 1,23¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,86( 2,70¢
Amortization of cash flow hedges 2,42¢ 2,25(
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fdueadjustments (1,01 —
Impairments of real estate assets 2,19¢ —
Losses on debt extinguishment 19¢€ 97<
Net gains on disposition of property (52,350) (29,45%)
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums — (255)
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest in unsolidated affiliate (7,457) —
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iaffis 1,82¢ (2,670
Changes in financing obligations (597) (2,010
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 3,12¢ 3,24¢

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (50¢) 5,31(
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,18¢) (3,25¢)
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (12,369 (13,609

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheriitiedil 10,20¢ (20,667)

Net cash provided by operating activities 186,51: 138,01t

Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatedgittle assets, net of cash acquired (418,799 (158,200
Investment in acquired controlling interest in umsolidated affiliate (32,819 —
Investments in development in process (16,639 (5,397)
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts (77,45¢€) (61,827
Investments in building improvements (38,707) (27,229
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 161,97( 152,45¢
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale resid#r@dondominiums — 3,76¢
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atfies 16,67: 1,03t
Investments in and repayments of mortgages and neteivable (864) 1,651
Investments in and advances/repayments to/fromnsutidated affiliates (429) (3,92¢)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites 5,48¢ 2,90¢
Net cash (used in) investing activities (401,579 (94,75()
Financing activities:

Dividends on Common Stock (107,75() (95,127
Dividends on Preferred Stock (1,88)) (1,88))
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in theeating Partnership (4,416 (4,739
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (40¢) (663)
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock 315,81¢ 191,66
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Stock (7,67¢) (2,745
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings (2,539 (2,24%)
Borrowings on revolving credit facility 695,30( 219,80(

Repavments of revolvina credit facili (511.900 (492.800



Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable
Payments on financing obligations
Contributions from noncontrolling interests in coldated affiliates
Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéh&incing activities:

Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of naalified deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieigy Partnership to fair value
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond

Assumption of mortgages and notes payable relatadduisition activities
Reduction of advances to unconsolidated affiliatdsted to acquisition activities
Issuances of Common Units to acquire real estatas

Reclass of aggregate differences between histarastlbasis and the basis reflected at the joimtuve level for assets
acquired

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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Nine Months Ended September 3!

2013 2012
$ 17,90 $ (2,102)
13,78 11,18
$  31,68¢ $ 9,08¢

Nine Months Ended September 3!

2013 2012

$ 67,78 $ 72,79¢

Nine Months Ended September 3I

2013 2012
$ 4,801 $ (10,429
28,78¢ 731
12,77¢ 1,82¢
24,49¢ 36,91¢
17,50( 14,18¢
55¢ 31C
8,57( 12,48¢
39¢€ 482
165,51! —
— 26,00(
— 2,29¢
8,20¢ —
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pidarte)

September 30, December 31,

2013 2012
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 403,55t % 345,61
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,756,55. 3,172,10
Development in process 56,49¢ 21,19¢
Land held for development 112,07¢ 115,41¢
4,328,68 3,654,33!
Less-accumulated depreciation (981,607) (903,83)
Net real estate assets 3,347,08! 2,750,49:
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale 16,31¢ 129,40(
Cash and cash equivalents 31,78( 13,86°
Restricted cash 15,24¢ 19,70:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,532 $2848, respectively 30,83¢ 23,07:
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&346 and $182, respectively 26,29: 25,47:
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,177 and $813, respectively 123,04° 111,23
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deaéfd 34,83¢ 65,81
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdared amortization of $90,241 and $75,863, respelsti 227,82t 166,00¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaiortization of $12,835 and $12,318,
respectively 42,62¢ 44,45¢
Total Assets $ 389589 $ 3,349,522
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 2,050,06 $ 1,859,16
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedil 208,46 172,02¢
Financing obligations 28,19: 29,35¢
Total Liabilities 2,286,72! 2,060,541
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:
Common Units, 2,943,872 and 3,733,016 outstandespectively 103,94¢ 124,86¢
Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferencgd®0 per unit), 29,077 units issued and
outstanding 29,077 29,071
Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units 133,02! 153,94¢
Equity:
Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 924,460 and 836,8f&anding, respectively 14,59¢ 11,42°
Limited partner Common Units, 88,577,675 and 79,288 outstanding, respectively 1,445,37. 1,131,48
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,009 (12,62¢)
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 21,17¢ 4,75
Total Equity 1,476,14 1,135,03
Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnershijts and Equity $ 389589 § 334952

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Rental and other revenues
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Losses on debt extinguishment

Income from continuing operations before dispositio of property and condominiums and acquisition of
controlling interest in and equity in earnings/(loses) of unconsolidated affiliates

Gains/(losses) on disposition of property
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest in unsolidated affiliate
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations
Impairments of real estate assets

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates
Distributions on Preferred Units

Net income available for common unitholders

Earnings per Common Unit — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders
Net income available for common unitholders
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted

Distributions declared per Common Unit

Net income available for common unitholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders

Net income available for common unitholders

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

147,29: 123,41¢ $ 415,96: 368,02
55,34! 45,83( 151,78 133,90°
48,12¢ 37,04: 130,39( 110,65t
8,991 9,79¢ 27,96¢ 28,49:
112,45t 92,67( 310,14( 273,05t
22,68: 22,91( 67,87¢ 70,30¢
962 907 2,86( 2,70¢

26 (20%) 87 (357)

23,67: 23,61: 70,82¢ 72,66
1,582 1,91¢ 4,98: 5,88¢
(32 — (196 979
1,55C 1,91¢ 4,78¢ 4,91(
12,71« 9,05z 39,78: 27,22
34 — 3) —

— 8C — 25t
7,451 — 7,451 —
(3,179 1,32¢ (1,87%) 2,67¢
17,02¢ 10,46( 45,35¢ 30,15¢
1,09¢ 2,40 3,84: 9,02¢

— — (2,199 —

37,94¢ 22,93¢ 52,35: 29,45t
39,04: 25,34( 54,00: 38,47¢
56,067 35,80( 99,35¢ 68,63¢
(203 (159 (599 (56€)
(627) (627) (1,88)) (1,88))
55,237 3501« $ 96,88: 66,18¢
0.1¢ 01z $ 0.4¢ 0.3¢
0.4: 0.32 0.62 0.4¢
0.61 04/ $ 1.11 0.8t
90,25¢ 79,94¢ 86,92( 78,03:
0.1¢ 01z $ 0.4¢ 0.3¢€
0.4 0.32 0.62 0.4¢
0.61 044 3 1.11 0.8t
90,36( 80,08¢ 87,03¢ 78,15¢
0.42¢ 0.42t $ 1.27¢ 1.27¢
16,19¢ 9,67¢ $ 42,88( 27,70¢
39,04: 25,34( 54,00: 38,47¢
55,237 3501« $ 96,88: 66,18¢




See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Comprehensive income:

Net income $ 56,060 $ 3580( $ 99,35¢ $ 68,63t
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finapbiond 97 (103) 39¢ 482
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (1,799 (3,337) 4,801 (10,429
Amortization of cash flow hedges 84C 791 2,42¢ 2,25(
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (867) (2,647 7,62 (7,692
Total comprehensive income 55,20¢ 33,15¢ 106,98: 60,94
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nomodimg interests (209) (159 (599 (56€)
Comprehensive income attributable to common urdkéis! $ 55000 § 32,99« § 106,38t $ 60,37

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Capital
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Common Units .
Noncontrolling

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 11,427  $ 1,131,48 % (12,629 $ 4,75  $ 1,135,03
Issuances of Common Units, net of tax withholdings 3,05¢ 302,54! — — 305,60:
Distributions paid on Common Units (1,117 (110,529 — — (111,64%
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (29 (1,867) — — (1,88))
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture 59 5,831 — — 5,89¢
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in conidated affiliates — — — (40¢) (40¢)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests in colidated affiliates — — — 16,24( 16,24(
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar 204 20,12t — — 20,32¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssis consolidated
affiliates (6) (587) — 59¢ —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 994 98,36: — — 99,35¢
Other comprehensive income — — 7,62t — 7,62¢
Total comprehensive income 106,98:
Balance at September 30’ 2013 $ 14,59( $ 1,445,37 $ (5,00:) $ 21,17( $ 1,476,14‘
Common Units )
Noncontrolling
General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 9,57t $ 948,18 $ 5,73) $ 4,646 $ 956,67-
Issuances of Common Units, net of tax withholdings 1,89( 187,08: — — 188,97:
Distributions paid on Common Units (999 (98,34() — — (99,33¢)
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (29 (1,867) — — (1,88))
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture 65 6,39¢ — — 6,46¢
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in conidated affiliates — — — (663) (663)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valne
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (22¢) (12,68¢) — — (12,819
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssim consolidated
affiliates (6) (560) — 56€ —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 68¢€ 67,94¢ — — 68,63t
Other comprehensive loss — — (7,692 — (7,692
Total comprehensive income 60,94:
Balance at September 30’ 2012 $ 11.06$ $ 1,096,17' $ (13,42() $ 4,54E $ 1,098,36

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2013 2012
Operating activities:
Net income $ 99,35¢ % 68,63t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 133,55¢ 117,76«
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities 25¢ 35¢
Share-based compensation expense 5,89¢ 6,46¢
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable 1,02¢ 1,23¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,86( 2,70¢
Amortization of cash flow hedges 2,42¢ 2,25(
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fdueadjustments (1,01 —
Impairments of real estate assets 2,19¢ —
Losses on debt extinguishment 19¢€ 97<
Net gains on disposition of property (52,350) (29,45%)
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums — (255)
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest in unsolidated affiliate (7,457) —
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iaffis 1,87¢ (2,679
Changes in financing obligations (597) (2,010
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 3,10¢ 3,23(
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (50¢) 5,31(
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,14)) (3,21¢€)
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (12,369 (13,609
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheriitiedil 10,257 (20,759
Net cash provided by operating activities 186,59( 137,95:
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatedgittle assets, net of cash acquired (418,799 (158,200
Investment in acquired controlling interest in umsolidated affiliate (32,819 —
Investments in development in process (16,639 (5,397)
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts (77,45¢€) (61,827
Investments in building improvements (38,707) (27,229
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 161,97( 152,45¢
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale resid#r@dondominiums — 3,76¢
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atfies 16,67: 1,03t
Investments in and repayments of mortgages and neteivable (864) 1,651
Investments in and advances/repayments to/fromnsutidated affiliates (429) (3,92¢)
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites 5,48¢ 2,90¢
Net cash (used in) investing activities (401,579 (94,75()
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Units (111,64% (99,339
Distributions on Preferred Units (1,88)) (1,88))
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (40€) (663)
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Units 315,81¢ 191,66
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Units (7,67¢) (2,745
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings (2,539 (2,24¢)
Borrowings on revolving credit facility 695,30( 219,80(
Repayments of revolving credit facility (511,900 (492,800

Borrowinas on mortaaaes and notes pav. — 225.00(



Repayments of mortgages and notes payable

Payments on financing obligations

Contributions from noncontrolling interests in colidated affiliates

Additions to deferred financing costs and otheariicing activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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(575) (1,316
16,24( —
(839) (3,39
232,89 (45,179
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéth&incing activities:

Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noalified deferred compensation plan
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond

Assumption of mortgages and notes payable relatadduisition activities

Reduction of advances to unconsolidated affiliaddsted to acquisition activities
Issuances of Common Units to acquire real estatas

Reclass of aggregate differences between histarasilbasis and the basis reflected at the jointuve level for assets

acquired

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Nine Months Ended September 3I

2013 2012
$ 17,91 $ (1,977)

13,867 11,15
$ 31,78C $ 9,174

Nine Months Ended September 3I

2013 2012

$ 67,78 $ 72,79¢

Nine Months Ended September 3!

2013 2012
$ 4801 $ (10,429
12,77 1,82¢
24,49¢ 36,91¢
17,50 14,18¢
55¢ 31C
(20,92) 10,18
39€ 482
165,51 —
— 26,00(
— 2,29¢
8,20¢ —




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2013
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) is alyfuhtegrated equity real estate investment trdRE(T”) that provides leasin
management, development, construction and otha¢omeastelated services for its properties and for thiedties. The Company condu
virtually all of its activities through HighwoodseRlty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Partngr§h At September 30, 2013 the
Company and/or the Operating Partnership whollyexvr282 in-service office, industrial and retaibperties, comprising 30.1 millissquar
feet; 592 acres of undeveloped land suitable fauréu development, of which 496 acres are considemé assets; and fouwffice
development properties. In addition, we owned egtsy ( 50.0% or less) in 23 gervice office properties, a rental residentialedepmen
property and 11 acres of undeveloped land suitfavléuture development, which includes a 12.5%negéin a 261,00@8quare foot offic
property directly owned by the Company (not incldidethe Operating Partnership’s Consolidated FrarStatements).

The Company is the sole general partner of the @iogr Partnership. At September 30, 2018e Company owned all of the Prefe
Units and 89.5 million , or 96.8% , of the Commonitd in the Operating Partnership. Limited partneven the remainin@.9 million
Common Units. During the nine months ended Septed®e2013 , the Company redeemed 789,Céfnmon Units for a like number
shares of Common Stock.

Common Stock Offerings

During the three and nine months ended Septemhe2@®IB , the Company issued 904,809 and 3,961sh8@es of Common Sto
respectively, under its equity sales agreemeng atverage gross sales price of $35.81 and $3®&0%hare, respectively, and receivec
proceeds, after sales commissions, of $31.9 mikind $144.2 million respectively. During the third quarter of 2018 Company issu
4,312,500 shares of Common Stock in a public affedand received net proceeds of $150.9 milligks a result of these Common St
offerings and the redemptions discussed above,ptreentage of Common Units owned by the Companyeased from 95.6%al
December 31, 2012 to 96.8% at September 30, 2013 .

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance Shedt®acember 31, 201®ere retrospectively revised from previously repdramounts
reflect in real estate and other assets, net, foelshle those properties classified as held f& daring the three months endgdptember 3
2013 . Our Consolidated Statements of Income fertkliee and nine months ended September 30, ®@iR retrospectively revised frc
previously reported amounts to reflect in discamdith operations the operations for those propestéssified as discontinued operations.

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statementsidecthe Operating Partnership, wholly owned subsies and those entities
which the Company has the controlling interest. Tgerating Partnership's Consolidated FinanciateStants include wholly own
subsidiaries and those entities in which the Opagad®artnership has the controlling interest. Atercompany transactions and accounts
been eliminated. At September 30, 2013 and DeceBihe2012, we had involvement with, but are not the primbeneficiary in, an enti
that we concluded to be a variable interest efiite Note 3).
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial staeta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiakiméormation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair preg@nt of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certates and other information from the interim Coitikd Financial Statements prese
in this Quarterly Report as permitted by SEC ruad regulations. These Consolidated Financial Bit¢s should be read in conjunci
with our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the Consolidated Fina&tatements and accompanying notes. Actual resulig cliffer from those estimates.

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions

During the third quarter of 2013, we acquired ain{ venture partner's 60.0% interest in the HW-Orlando, LLC joint venture, whic
owns five office properties in Orlando, FL encormgiag 1.3 million square feet, for a net purchaseepof $112.8 million. We previousl|
accounted for our 40.0%terest in this joint venture using the equity hoet of accounting. The assets and liabilities efjtint venture ai
now wholly owned and are recorded in our Consodideinancial Statements, including assets recoatlédir value of $188.0 milliomnc
secured debt recorded at fair value of $127.9 onilli with an effective interest rate of 3.11% .sTtiebt matures in July 2014s a result ¢
acquiring a controlling interest in this joint varg, our previously held equity interest was reraead at a fair value of $75.2 millioesulting
in a gain of $7.5 million which represents the difference between thenfaikket value of our previously held equity interastl the cost ba:
in our investment on the date of acquisition. Thie farket value of our previously held equity netet was determined by management t
on information available at the acquisition datd an current assumptions as to future operations.

During the third quarter of 2013, we also acquired:

» an office property in Nashville, TN encompassi#f),000 square feet for a net purchase price 89 $1million; anc

e our DLF Il joint venture partner's 57.0% intdr@stwo office properties in Atlanta, GA encompags505,000square feet for a r
purchase price of $44.5 million , including thewamgtion of secured debt recorded at fair value3i.6 million, with an effectiv

interest rate of 3.34% . This debt matures in APiL5 .

During the second quarter of 2013, we acquiredfficeoproperty in Atlanta, GA encompassing 553,800are feet for a purchase p
of $140.1 million .

During the first quarter of 2013, we acquired:
» two office properties in Tampa, FL encompas$iig,000 square feet for a purchase price of $52IBm;
» two office properties in Greensboro, NC encorspas 195,000 square feet for a purchase price @f853illion ; anc

» five acres of development land in Memphis, TNd@urchase price of $4.8 million

During the three and nine months ended Septembe2IB , we expensed $0.8 million and $1.7 milljaespectively, of acquisitic
costs (included in general and administrative expsprelated to these acquisitions. The assetsradcand liabilities assumed were recotl
at fair value as determined by management basedformation available at the acquisition date amdcarrent assumptions as to fut
operations.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

2. Real Estate Assets - Continued

The following table sets forth a summary of the failue of the major assets acquired and liabdliitesumed relating to the third que
2013 acquisitions in Orlando, FL and Nashville, @Nd the second quarter 2013 acquisition in Atla4, discussed in the preced
paragraphs:

Total
Purchase Price
Allocation

Real estate assets $ 445,39¢
Acquisition-related intangible assets (in deferfiaencing and leasing costs) 50,59¢
Mortgages and notes payable (127,89))
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilit{@s accounts payable, accrued expenses and odtdities) (17,819
Total allocation $ 350,28:

The following table sets forth our rental and otmevenues and net income, adjusted for interestresgp and depreciation ¢
amortization related to purchase price allocati@aesjuisition costs and equity in earnings of unobdated affiliates previously recognizec
income assuming the Orlando, FL, Nashville, TN Atldnta, GA acquisitions discussed in the precegiaggraph had been completed ¢
January 1, 2012 :

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,

2013 2012 2013 2012
Pro forma rental and other revenues $ 152,22. $ 162,42. $ 451,31 $ 410,02
Pro forma net income $ 49,81¢ $ 2395 $ 90,060 $ 56,78:
Pro forma earnings per share - basic $ 054 $ 0.2t % 1.0 $ 0.6¢
Pro forma earnings per share - diluted $ 054 % 0.2¢ % 100 $ 0.6¢

The third quarter 2013 acquisitions in Orlando,dfid Nashville, TN and the second quarter 2013 aitiprni in Atlanta, GA resulted
revenues of $10.0 million and $10.3 million and lesses of $0.1 million and $0.4 millisacorded in the Consolidated Statements of In
for the three and nine months ended September03@, 2espectively.

During the third quarter of 2012, we acquired a,80@ square foot office property in Atlanta, GA &¥44.9 million. The following tabls
sets forth a summary of the fair value of the magsets acquired and liabilities assumed in thgsiiaition:

Total
Purchase Price
Allocation
Real estate assets $ 135,12¢
Acquisition-related intangible assets (in deferfiaencing and leasing costs) 21,631
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilit{@s accounts payable, accrued expenses and c#dities) (21,87Y
Total allocation $ 144,89

The following table sets forth our rental and otlevenues and net income, adjusted for intereseresep and depreciation ¢
amortization related to purchase price allocatiamg] acquisition costs assuming the 492 &@@are foot office building in Atlanta, GA w
acquired on January 1, 2011 :

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2012 2012
Pro forma rental and other revenues $ 127,83t $ 381,07(
Pro forma net income $ 35,76t $ 68,52¢
Pro forma earnings per share - basic $ 04: $ 0.84
Pro forma earnings per share - diluted $ 04: $ 0.8¢4
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

2. Real Estate Assets - Continued
Dispositions
During the third quarter of 2013, we sold:

» an office property in Tampa, FL for a sale pra¢e11.6 million and recorded a gain on dispositdd discontinued operations $1.Z
million ; and

e sixteen industrial properties and a land paiced single transaction in Atlanta, GA for a sale@ of $91.6 million (beforeés0.2
million in closing credits to buyer for unfundedhéat improvements and after $0.3 milliomclosing credits to buyer for free re
We recorded gains on disposition of discontinuedrafions of $36.7 milliorrelated to the industrial properties and a gai
disposition of property of less than $0.1 millie@iated to the land parcel.

During the second quarter of 2013, we sold:

» five industrial properties in Atlanta, GA forsale price of $4.5 million (after $0.1 million closing credits to buyer for free rent)
recorded a gain on disposition of discontinued atens of less than $0.1 million;

» six industrial properties and a land parcel Birgyle transaction in Atlanta, GA for a sale prid¢e&38.7 million (before $1.8 milliom
closing credits to buyer for unfunded tenant imgmoents and after $1.3 millian closing credits to buyer for free rent) and relen
a gain on disposition of discontinued operation$X8.2 million ; and

» two industrial properties in Atlanta, GA for ales price of $4.8 milliorand recorded a loss on disposition of discontinygetation
of less than $0.1 million.

During the first quarter of 2013, we sold two offiproperties in Orlando, FL for a sale price of $l#illion (before $0.8 milliorin
closing credits to buyer for unfunded tenant imgrents) and recorded a loss on disposition of dismeed operations of $0.3 million.

In connection with the disposition of an office pesty in Jackson, MS in the third quarter of 20&2, had the right to receive additio
cash consideration of up to $1.5 million upon tags$action of a certain post-closing requirem@dite postelosing requirement was satisf
and the cash consideration was received duringfitbie quarter of 2013. Accordingly, we recognizetl.% million in additional gain o
disposition of discontinued operations in the faqsarter of 2013.

Impairments

During the second quarter of 2013, we recorded impnts of real estate assets of $1.1 million ar firoperties in a single office p:
in Winston-Salem, NC. This office park was subsedyeclassified as discontinued operations in thiedtquarter of 2013.

During the first quarter of 2013, we recorded impants of real estate assets of $0.4 million onitwdoistrial properties in Atlanta, C
and recorded impairments of real estate assetsftrethle of $0.7 million on fivéndustrial properties in Atlanta, GA. These projsrtwer:
subsequently sold in the second quarter of 2013amdlassified as discontinued operations.

These impairments were due to a change in the a&sbtiming of future dispositions and leasing asstiiong, which reduced the futt
expected cash flows from the impaired properties.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antbsoeceivable:

Seller financing (first mortgages)
Less allowance

Mortgage receivable
Less allowance

Promissory notes
Less allowance

Mortgages and notes receivable, net

September 30, December 31,

2013 2012
$ 16,45 $ 15,85:
16,45: 15,85:

9,207 8,64¢

9,207 8,64¢

97¢ 1,15¢

(340) (182)

63C 971

$ 26,29: $ 25,47:

During 2010, we provided seller financing in corgtion with two disposition transactions. The seller financing v&enced by firs
mortgages secured by the assignment of rents andhitherlying real estate assets.

During 2012, we provided secured acquisition finagdo a third party. We also agreed to loan sihatd tparty $8.4 millioron a secure
basis to fund future infrastructure development.oASeptember 30, 2013 , $0.2 millibas been funded to the third party for infrastree
development. We concluded this arrangement to katarest in a variable interest entity. Howevémnce we do not have the power to di
matters that most significantly impact the actestiof the entity, we do not qualify as the primaeneficiary. Accordingly, the entity is r
consolidated. Our risk of loss with respect to thisangement is limited to the carrying value of thortgage receivable and the fu

infrastructure development funding commitment.

We evaluate the ability to collect our mortgaged antes receivable by monitoring the leasing dtesisand/or market fundamentals
these assets. As of September 30, 20bB8r mortgages and notes receivable were not fautteand there were no other indicator:

impairment.

The following table sets forth our notes receivalewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Beginning notes receivable allowance
Recoveries/write-offs/other

Total notes receivable allowance

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ 37¢  $ 11€  $ 18z $ 61
(36) 93 15¢ 15C
$ 34C $ 211  $ 34C $ 211
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates

We have equity interests of up to 50.086various joint ventures with unrelated third pestthat are accounted for using the ec
method of accounting because we have the abiligxécise significant influence over their opergtamd financial policies.

The following table sets forth combined summarifieencial information for the Company's unconsdiéthaffiliates:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Income Statementsii)
Rental and other revenues $ 16,91 $ 2505. $ 64,36: $ 75,92
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 8,73: 11,62« 31,68: 35,70¢
Depreciation and amortization 5,01C 6,35¢ 17,38: 18,83¢
Impairments of real estate assets 15,28 — 20,077 7,18(
Interest expense 3,141 4,98( 12,56¢ 16,07"
Total expenses 32,17 22,95¢ 81,71( 77,80:
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties (15,260 2,092 (17,349 (1,882
Gains on disposition of properties 8,25¢ — 8,32: 6,27¢
Net income/(loss) $ (7,00 $ 2,09 $ (9,029 $ 4,39:
The Company's share of:
Depreciation and amortization $ 1626 $ 2028 $ 573 $ 5,801
Impairments of real estate assets $ 3481 $ — $ 4507 $ 1,002
Interest expense $ 109 $ 1,77t $ 458: $ 559
Gains on disposition of properties $ — % — % 431 % —
Net income/(loss) $ (3410 $ 914 $ (2,83 $ 1,252
The Company's share of net income/(loss) $ (3410 $ 914 $ (2,839 $ 1,25:
Adjustments for management and other fees 237 41C 1,011 1,41¢
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffils $ (8179 $ 132« § (1829 $ 267(

(1) For the three and nine months ended SepteBth&013, as a result of acquiring our joint veatpartner's 60.0%terest in the third quarter of 2013,
consolidated a joint venture previously accountdihder the equity method of accounting.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates - @htinued

The following table sets forth combined summarifirdncial information for the Operating Partnershipnconsolidated affiliates:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Income Statementsi1)
Rental and other revenues $ 1587: $ 24,06 $ 61,241 $ 72,91¢
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 8,12¢ 11,02« 29,82: 33,90:
Depreciation and amortization 4,69¢ 6,04¢ 16,44¢ 17,90t
Impairments of real estate assets 15,28 — 20,077 7,18(
Interest expense 2,97¢ 4,817 12,08¢ 15,58
Total expenses 31,08¢ 21,88t 78,43 74,56¢
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties (15,21¢) 2,17 (17,190 (1,659
Gains on disposition of properties 8,25¢ — 8,32: 6,27
Net income/(loss) $ (690 $ 2,177 $ (8,867 $ 4,62
The Operating Partnership's share of:
Depreciation and amortization $ 158 $ 198 $ 561¢ $ 5,68¢
Impairments of real estate assets $ 3481 §$ — $ 4507 $ 1,002
Interest expense $ 107¢ $ 1,75« $ 452t $ 553¢
Gains on disposition of properties $ — 3 — 431 $ —
Net income/(loss) $ (3,407 $ 92t $ (2,81 $ 1,281
The Operating Partnership's share of net inconss)(lo $ (3,409 $ 92t $ (2,815 $ 1,281
Adjustments for management and other fees 231 40¢ 94C 1,39¢
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis $ (8179 $ 132t $ (1879 $ 267¢

(1) For the three and nine months ended SepteBth&013, as a result of acquiring our joint veatpartner's 60.0%terest in the third quarter of 2013,
consolidated a joint venture previously accountdihder the equity method of accounting.
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4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates - @htinued
Highwoods DLF 98/29, LLC ("DLF I")

During the second quarter of 2013, DLF | sold aficefproperty to an unrelated third party for aesptice of $5.9 million (afte$0.1
million in closing credits to buyer for free rent) and meleal a gain on disposition of discontinued operatiof less than $0.1 million. v
recorded less than $0.1 million as our share sfghin through equity in earnings of unconsolidaiitiates.

During the third quarter of 2013, DLF | recordedpairment of real estate assets of $15.3 milbonan office property in Orlando, F
We recorded $3.5 million as our share of this impant charge through equity in earnings of uncadated affiliates.

During the first quarter of 2013, DLF | recordedparments of real estate assets of $4.8 milioran office property in Atlanta, GA a
an office property in Charlotte, NC. We recordelO$million as our share of this impairment charge through tequi earnings ¢
unconsolidated affiliates.

These impairments were due to a change in the &sktiming of future dispositions and/or leasinguasgtions, which reduced the fut
expected cash flows from the impaired properties.

Highwoods DLF 97/26 DLF 99/32, LP ("DLF 1I")
See Note 2 for a description of our acquisitiovad office properties in Atlanta, GA from DLF Il dag the third quarter of 2013.

During the first quarter of 2013, DLF |l sold arfiogé property to unrelated third parties for a gaiee of $10.1 million (afte$0.3 millior
in closing credits to buyer for free rent) and relea a gain on disposition of property of less tfarl million. As our cost basis is differ
from the basis reflected at the joint venture lewa recorded $0.4 million of gain through equityearnings of unconsolidated affiliates.

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lialities

The following table sets forth total intangible @tssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of analated amortizatior

September 30, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets:
Deferred financing costs $ 19,50¢ $ 21,75¢
Less accumulated amortization (8,639 (7,862
10,87 13,897
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ above market lease and in-place lease acquisélated
intangible assets) 298,56: 220,11:
Less accumulated amortization (81,609 (68,00
216,95: 152,11
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 227,82t $ 166,00¢
Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensesd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 55,32. $ 37,01¢
Less accumulated amortization (6,900 (3,389
$ 48,427 $ 33,63¢
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5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lialities - Continued

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and acquisition-related below mdeeesste liabilities:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 96 $ 907 $ 2.86( $ 2,70¢
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acqoisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation and
amortization) $ 10,75 $ 6667 $ 26,96: $ 19,93(
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 347 % 38¢ $ 1,061 $ 1,037
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 154 % 43z $ 2,49¢ $ 1,023
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental property and other expenses) $ 14C  $ 446 9 41€  $ 46
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (1,589 $ 647 $ (3,73) $ (1,749
The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédabilities:
Amortization of
Deferred Leasing
Costs and Amortization of Amortization of
Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition- Acquisition-
Related Acquisition- Related Related Below
Intangible Assets Amortization of Related Intangible Assets  Market Lease
Amortization of (in Depreciation  Lease Incentives Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Deferred and (in Rental and (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Financing Costs Amortization) Other Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
October 1 through December 31, 2013  $ 86 $ 10,22: $ 32C % 1,24 $ 13t $ (1,567
2014 3,23: 38,79t 1,19¢ 4,401 55¢ (6,017
2015 2,59¢ 32,02¢ 971 3,627 55¢ (5,728
2016 1,50( 26,22¢ 794 2,81t 55¢ (5,414
2017 1,21: 22,31 72¢ 2,26t 55¢ (5,165
Thereafter 1,46¢ 57,40: 2,55 5,05¢ 1,64z (24,539
$ 10,87: $ 186,98! $ 6,56¢ $ 19,40¢ $ 399 $ (48,427
Weighted average remaining amortization
periods as of September 30, 2013 (in
5.1 6.7 7.6 6.7 7.2 9.2

years)

The following table sets forth the intangible assatquired and below market lease liabilities agsbias a result of 201&cquisitior
activity:

Acquisition-
Acquisition- Acquisition- Related Below
Related Related Market Lease
Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Liabilities
(amortized in (amortized in (amortized in
Rental and Other Depreciation and Rental and Other
Revenues) Amortization) Revenues)
Amount recorded from acquisition activity $ 17,20 $ 58,42: $ (29,129
Weighted average remaining amortization periodsf &ptember 30, 2013 (in years) 6.t 6.5 8.¢
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6. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages anttagayable:

September 30, December 31,

2013 2012
Secured indebtedness $ 591,82 $ 549,60
Unsecured indebtedness 1,458,241 1,309,55!
Total mortgages and notes payable $ 205006 $ 1,85916.

At September 30, 201,3our secured mortgage loans were collateralizetehlestate assets with an aggregate undepretiatédvalu
of $ 971.2 million .

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in July 20&6d includes an accordion feature that al
for an additional $ 75.0 millionf borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occurredhave
an option to extend the maturity for an additiopedr. There was $ 206.4 million and $ 284.4 millaistanding under our revolving cre
facility at September 30, 2013 and October 21, 20&3pectively. At both September 30, 2013 ansbmt21, 2013 , we had $ 0.1 millioh
outstanding letters of credit, which reduces thailakility on our revolving credit facility. As aesult, the unused capacity of our revol
credit facility at September 30, 2013 and OctolerZD13 was $ 268.5 million and $ 190.5 millioespectively.

During the third quarter of 2013, we prepaid withpanalty the remaining $114.7 million balance wo secured mortgage loans bea
interest at a weighted average rate of 5.75% tlea¢ wriginally scheduled to mature in December 2002 recorded less than $0.1 millioh
loss on debt extinguishment related to this repayme

During the first quarter of 2013, we prepaid theaiing $35.0 million balance on a $200.0 millibank term loan that was origine
scheduled to mature in February 2016 . We reco$@e2i million of loss on debt extinguishment relatedhis repayment.

We are currently in compliance with the debt covdsand other requirements with respect to our.debt

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

Our interest rate swaps have been designated aararizbing accounted for as cash flow hedges viidéimges in fair value recordec
other comprehensive income each reporting periagain or loss was recognized related to hedgdeictdfeness or to amounts exclu
from effectiveness testing on our cash flow heddi@éng the nine months ended September 30, 20/& have no collateral requireme
related to our interest rate swaps.

Amounts reported in accumulated other compreheries® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be restified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variabte-debt. During the period from October 1, 20i®ugh September 30, 2014, we estimate
$3.3 million will be reclassified to interest exgen

For the periods ended September 30, 2013 and Dere3h2012 all of our derivatives were in a liability positi. The following tabl
sets forth the fair value of our derivatives:

September 30, December 31,

2013 2012
Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 2,047 $ 9,36¢
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gains/(losses) recognized in@CL on derivatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (1,799 $ (3,33) $ 4,801 $ (10,429
Amount of losses reclassified out of AOCL into coméctual interest expense (effective
portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 84C $ 791 $ 2428 $ 2,25(

8. Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At September 30, 2013, our noncontrolling intexestconsolidated affiliates relates to our joiehture partner's 50.0%terest in offici

properties located in Richmond, VA. Our joint vengtpartner is an unrelated third party.

Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership

The following table sets forth the Company's nomiciling interests in the Operating Partnership:

Nine Months Ended September 3!

2013 2012

Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatifaytnership $ 124,86¢ 110,65!
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opiexg Partnership to fair value 8,57( 12,48t
Issuances of Common Units — 2,29¢
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock (28,78%) (737)

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdstshe Operating Partnership 3,71z 3,16¢
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&dating Partnership (4,416) (4,739
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 103,94 123,14

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from the @amg's noncontrolling interests

the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net income available for common stockholders $ 5334¢ $ 3335 $ 93,22 63,01!
Increase in additional paid in capital from conians of Common Units
to Common Stock 25,93 10C 28,78¢ 731
Issuances of Common Units — (2,299 — (2,299
Change from net income available for common stoltldrs and transfers from noncontrolling
interests $ 79,28t $ 31,15¢ $ 122,00t 61,44
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument
The following summarizes the three levels of inghtst we use to measure fair value.
Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabtssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our qualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 liability is our nogualified deferred compensation obligation. The @any's Level 1 noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership relate to the ownership gh@on Units by various individuals and entities otthen the Company.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssafuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relat
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of certain of mortgages and notes receivable, which was etz the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the pricevioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was attiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the pricevioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard odelbogy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectddblarcash payments. The variable cash paymersrahterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanakves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevfalues to account for potential nonperformance, tisk were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include (1) certain of our meges and notes receivable, which were estimatethdyncome approach utilizi
internal cash flow projections and market intenegés to estimate the price that would be paidniroalerly transaction between mal
participants, (2) our tax increment financing bowthich is not routinely traded but whose fair valaedetermined by the income appra
utilizing contractual cash flows and marletsed interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quoted bid/ask price
similar unrated municipal bonds, and (3) any resdate assets recorded at fair value on areounrring basis as a result of our quart
impairment analysis, which were valued using thiengeof definitive sales contracts or the sales amspn approach and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liabilities include the fair value ofiocontingent consideration to acquire real estatets and financing obligations, wt
were estimated by the income approach to approrirte price that would be paid in an orderly tratisa between market participar
utilizing: (1) contractual cash flows; (2) markmsed interest rates; and (3) a number of othemgsttons including demand for spe
competition for customers, changes in market reatals, costs of operation and expected ownergripgs.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth our assets and litds and the Company's noncontrolling interestshie Operating Partnership that
measured at fair value within the fair value hiehgr

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Assets or Significant Unobservable
Total Liabilities Observable Inputs Inputs

Fair Value at September 30, 2013:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 26,40¢ $ — % 17,16¢ $ 9,24(
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,75: 3,75: — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 14,33( — — 14,33(

Total Assets $ 44,49; $ 3,75¢  $ 17,16¢ % 23,57(
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 103,94¢ $ 103,94¢ $ — % =
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 2,136,100 $ — $ 2,136,100 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrygehses and other liabilities) 2,047 — 2,043 —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,75¢ 3,75: — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable,

accrued expenses and other liabilities) 191 — — 191
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 24,21: — — 24,21

Total Liabilities $ 2,166,300 $ 3,75 $ 2,138,115 $ 24,40:;
Fair Value at December 31, 2012:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 24728 $ — % 16,077 $ 8,64¢
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,35¢ 3,35¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 14,49¢ — — 14,49¢

Total Assets $ 42578 $ 3,35¢ $ 16,077 $ 23,14«
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 124,86¢ $ 124,86¢ $ — —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair valye $ 1,987,36- $ — $ 198736 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 9,36¢ — 9,36¢ —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,35¢ 3,35¢ — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable,

accrued expenses and other liabilities) 563 — — 563
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 23,25 — — 23,25:

Total Liabilities $ 2,023,990 $ 3354 $ 1,996,73 $ 23,81t

(1) Amounts recorded at historical cost on oansblidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2@LlBerember 31, 2012 .
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth the changes in oavél 3 asset and liability, which are recordedaat falue on our Consolidated Bala
Sheets:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Asset:

Tax Increment Financing Bond:

Beginning balance $ 1423 $ 1537 $ 14,49% $ 14,78t
Principal repayment — — (562) —
Unrealized gains/(losses) (in AOCL) 97 (1012) 39¢€ 482

Ending balance $ 1433( $ 1527( $ 14,33( $ 15,27(

Liability:

Contingent Consideration to Acquire Real Estate Asss:

Beginning balance $ 384 $ 677 $ 56 $ 677
Unrealized gains (in general and administrativeeesps) (293 (119 (372 (119

Ending balance $ 191 % 56 $ 191 $ 568

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandimgd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at $egier 30, 2013 was $1.5 millidrelow the outstanding principal due on the bondh¢
discount rate used to fair value this bond wasld#¥is points higher or lower, the fair value of tleed would have been $0.4 millikmwer ol
$0.5 million higher, respectively, as of Septen@r2013. We intend to hold this bond and have concludedl We will not be required
sell this bond before recovery of the bond princifayment of the principal and interest for thedbds guaranteed by us. We have reca
no credit losses related to the bond during theetland nine months ended September 30, 2013 ad Zb&re is no legal right of offset w
the liability, which we report as a financing olatgn, related to this tax increment financing hond

The following table sets forth quantitative inforiioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesSeaand liability, which are recorc
at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable Rate/
September 30, 2013 Technique Input Percentage
Asset:
Tax increment financing bond $ 14,33( Income approach Discount rate 10.8%
Liability:
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetass $ 191 Income approach Payout percentage 25.0%
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10. ShareBased Payment

During the nine months ended September 30, 2008 Company granted 168,780bck options with an exercise price equal tc
closing market price of a share of Common Stockhendate of grant. The fair value of each optioasimated on the date of grant using
Black-Scholes option pricing model, which resultedh weighted average grant date fair value peresbf$ 6.50 . During thaine month
ended September 30, 2013 , the Company also gr&6tdd4 shares of time-based restricted stock &ui86 shares of total retubase:
restricted stock with weighted average grant date falues per share of $ 36.64 and $ 31.73 , otispdy. We recorded stochase!
compensation expense of $1.2 million and $2.0 amlliuring the three months ended September 30, 20d2012 , respectively, andb$
million and $ 6.5 million during the nine monthsded September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectiveleptember 30, 2013 , there vwi&(
million of total unrecognized stodkased compensation costs, which will be recognixea a weighted average remaining contractual tef
2.4 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components of O

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance $ (1,599 $ (1,72 $ (1,899 $ (2,309
Unrealized gains/(losses) on tax increment finabiond 97 (203) 39¢€ 482
Ending balance (1,502 (1,827 (1,509 (1,827
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance (2,543 (9,059 (10,730 (3,425
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (2,799 (3,337) 4,801 (10,429
Amortization of cash flow hedges 84C 791 2,42¢ 2,25(
Ending balance (3,507 (11,599 (3,507 (11,599
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (5009 $ (13,420 $ (5009 $ (13,420

(1) Amounts reclassified out of AOCL into comigal interest expense.
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations dfésd as discontinued operations:

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rental and other revenues $ 281 $ 5,671 10,39¢ $ 24,21
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 1,04¢ 1,622 3,38¢ 7,79¢€
Depreciation and amortization 66& 1,61C 3,16¢ 7,10¢
Total operating expenses 1,71< 3,232 6,55k 14,90:
Interest expense — 35 — 28¢
Income from discontinued operations 1,09¢ 2,40¢ 3,84: 9,02¢
Impairments of real estate assets — — (2,199 —
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 37,94¢ 22,93¢ 52,35 29,45t
Total discontinued operations $ 39,04: $ 2534 54,00: $ 38,47¢
The following table sets forth the major classeagsfets of our real estate and other assets,alétfdn sale:
September 30, December 31,
2012
Assets:
Land $ 1,94¢ % 28,59¢
Buildings and tenant improvements 18,49¢ 132,36:
Land held for development — 2,36¢
Less-accumulated depreciation (5,93)) (43,73()
Net real estate assets 14,51t 119,59
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net 1,187 5,75¢
Deferred leasing costs, net 614 4,01«
Prepaid expenses and other assets — 3C
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 16,31¢  $ 129,40(

As of September 30, 2013 , real estate and otlsstsgasnet, held for sale consisted of an officepgrty in Atlanta, GA and fouoffice
properties in Winston-Salem, NC. As of December2fll], 2, real estate and other assets, net, held forcealsisted of an office property ¢
29 industrial properties in Atlanta, GA, two offipeoperties in Orlando, FL, an office property ianipa, FL and fouoffice properties i
Winston-Salem, NC. All of these properties are gifeed as discontinued operations during the ttane@ nine months endefeptember 3

2013 and 2012, respectively.
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13. Earnings Per Share and Per Un|

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share of the Company:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 17,02¢ $ 1045 $ 4540¢ $ 30,14
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim the Operating Partnership from continuingrapens (509) (459) (1,689 (1,339
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (203) (159 (599) (56€)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,88)) (1,88))
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 15,69: 9,211 41,24° 26,36¢
Income from discontinued operations 39,04: 25,34( 54,00: 38,47¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis the Operating Partnership from discontinued
operations (1,386 (2,199 (2,029) (2,83))
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 37,65¢ 24,14¢ 51,97¢ 36,64¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 5334¢ $ 33351 $ 9322 $ 63,01
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shar@s (2) 87,46° 76,59( 83,79: 74,70:
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1z $ 04¢ $ 0.3t
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 0.42 0.3Z 0.62 0.4¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 061 $ 0.4¢ % 111 $ 0.84
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 17,02« $ 1045 $ 4540¢ $ 30,14
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing operas (203) (159 (599) (56€)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (1,88) (2,88))
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attribute
to noncontrolling interests in the Operating Pathip 16,19¢ 9,67( 42,93: 27,70(
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 39,04: 25,34( 54,00: 38,47¢
Net income available for common stockholders bef@te(income) attributable to noncontrolling
interests in the Operating Partnership $ 5523 $ 3501 $ 9693: $ 66,17¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Sharéghiexl average shargeq (2) 87,46 76,59( 83,79¢ 74,70%
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 101 137 114 127
Noncontrolling interests Common Units 3,201 3,76¢ 3,53¢ 3,73¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumed
conversiong 1) 90,76¢ 80,49¢ 87,44 78,56¢
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1z $ 04¢ $ 0.3t
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.4% 0.31 0.6z 0.4¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 061 $ 04:  $ 111 % 0.8/
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13. Earnings Per Share and Per Unit Continued

(1) There were 0.3 million and 0.5 million options datwling during the three months ended Septembe2(®(B and 2012 , respectively, ab@ million
and 0.5 million options outstanding during the ninenths ended September 30, 2013 and 20&&pectively, that were not included in the cotapar
of diluted earnings per share because the impanthfding such options would be anti-dilutive

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock where divitseon such restricted stock are riorfeitable

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per unit of the Opera#@agnership:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 17,02¢ $ 1046( $ 4535 $ 30,15¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (209) (159 (599) (56€)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627) (1,88) (2,88))
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 16,19¢ 9,67« 42,88( 27,70¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 39,04: 25,34( 54,00: 38,47¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 5523 $ 3501+ $ 96,88. $ 66,18¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average unitg) (2) 90,25¢ 79,94¢ 86,92( 78,03:
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1¢ 3 0.1z $ 04¢ $ 0.3¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.42 0.32 0.62 0.4¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 061 $ 0.4¢ % 111 % 0.8t
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 17,028 $ 1046( $ 4535 $ 30,15¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (209) (159 (599) (56€)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627) (1,88)) (2,88))
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 16,19: 9,674 42,88( 27,70¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 39,04: 25,34( 54,00: 38,47¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 5523 $ 3501+ $ 96,88. $ 66,18¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit giveid average units) (2) 90,25¢ 79,94¢ 86,92( 78,03:
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 101 137 114 127
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uratjusted weighted average units and assumed
conversiong1) 90,36( 80,08¢ 87,03« 78,15¢
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1z $ 04¢ $ 0.3€
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders 0.42 0.3Z 0.62 0.4¢

Net income available for common unitholders $ 061 $ 044  $ 1.11 % 0.8t

(1) There were 0.3 million and 0.5 million optiocoststanding during the three months ended Septedihe2013 and 2012 , respectively, @nd million
and 0.5 million options outstanding during the nimenths ended September 30, 2013 and 20&8pectively, that were not included in the cotapar
of diluted earnings per unit because the impaata@@iding such options would be anti-dilutive



(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock whévieldnds on such restricted stock are riorieitable
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

14. Segment Informatior

The following tables summarize the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveness rental property and other expenses, for @aotr reportable segments:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rental and Other Revenues(1)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 2252 $ 13,70¢0 $ 57,63( $ 43,22
Greenville, SC 2,69¢ 3,29¢ 9,05¢ 10,28¢
Kansas City, MO 4,064 4,01« 12,067 11,17:
Memphis, TN 9,64 9,10z 28,68( 27,60
Nashville, TN 15,147 14,28t 43,41 42,45¢
Orlando, FL 8,441 2,217 12,89« 6,594
Piedmont Triad, NC 6,792 5,17¢ 19,93: 14,53:
Pittsburgh, PA 14,19: 9,48: 41,83t 27,67:
Raleigh, NC 21,73% 20,57¢ 64,12+ 60,73:
Richmond, VA 12,00¢ 11,84¢ 35,63¢ 35,44
Tampa, FL 17,27¢ 17,19¢ 52,84( 51,14(
Total Office Segment 134,52: 110,90: 378,10¢ 330,85:

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 21C 18¢ 624 61C
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,99¢ 3,141 9,23¢ 9,38¢
Total Industrial Segment 3,20¢ 3,33( 9,862 9,99¢

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,56¢ 9,18¢ 27,99 27,17¢
Total Retail Segment 9,56/ 9,18¢ 27,99: 27,17¢
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 147,29« § 12341t § 41596 $ 368,02
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

14. Segment Information - Continued

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 13,866 $ 8,40¢ $ 3593t $ 27,34¢
Greenville, SC 1,301 1,80¢ 4,86¢ 5,98¢
Kansas City, MO 2,597 2,54¢ 7,79¢ 7,06(
Memphis, TN 5,40¢ 5,37¢ 16,331 16,22¢
Nashville, TN 10,31: 9,772 30,02¢ 29,24°
Orlando, FL 4,95( 947 7,09¢ 3,06¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 4,37: 3,09t 12,82: 9,10z
Pittsburgh, PA 8,001 4,94¢ 23,32 13,85:
Raleigh, NC 14,92( 13,93¢ 45,22¢ 42,26
Richmond, VA 7,91( 7,86: 24,26 24,27(
Tampa, FL 10,16t 10,81¢ 32,28 32,02¢
Total Office Segment 83,80« 69,52: 239,99( 210,45(
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 122 10C 361 347
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,187 2,25¢ 6,791 6,84¢
Total Industrial Segment 2,30¢ 2,35¢ 7,15¢ 7,19¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,837 5,67¢ 17,06¢ 16,52¢
Total Retail Segment 5,83 5,67¢ 17,06¢ 16,52t
Residential:
Raleigh, NC — (39) — a7¢)
Total Residential Segment — (33 — (17¢)
Corporate and other (22) (6) (55) (65)
Total Net Operating Income 91,92¢ 77,51« 264,15¢ 233,92
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsdefore disposition of property and
condominiums and acquisition of controlling interesin and equity in earnings/(losses) of
unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (48,129 (37,04) (130,39() (110,65¢)
General and administrative expenses (8,969 (9,725 (27,949 (28,299
Interest expense (23,672 (23,619 (70,82¢) (72,66
Other income 1,55( 1,91¢ 4,78¢ 4,91(
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and
acquisition of controlling interest in and equity n earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated
affiliates $ 12,71« $ 9,052 $ 39,78 $ 27,22

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

15. Subsequent Event

Effective October 1, 2013 , the Company contributed 2.5%interest in the 4600 Madison Associates, LP jogtiture to the Operati
Partnership.

On October 1, 2013 , our consolidated HighwoodskdlaAssociates, LLC joint venture prepaid withodnplty the remaining32.:

million balance on four secured mortgage loansibganterest at a weighted average rate of 5. #@d6were originally scheduled to matur.
January 2014 .

On October 2, 2013 , we sold an office propertAilanta, GA for a sale price of $13.8 milli@md expect to record a gain on dispos
of discontinued operations of $3.0 million .

On October 3, 2013 , we prepaid without penaltg@used mortgage loan with a fair market value of.$@nillion bearing an effecti
interest rate of 5.12% that was originally schedutemature in January 2014 .

On October 24, 2013 , we sold four office propertie Winston-Salem, NC for a sale price of $6.2ionland expect to record a gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $0.1 iwl.

On October 28, 2013 , we sold an office propertyMimston-Salem, NC for a sale price of $5.3 milliamd expect to record a gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $2.5 iwiil.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated equity REIT thatvides leasing, management, development, cotistnuand other customeelatec
services for our properties and for third partiEse Company conducts virtually all of its activitithrough the Operating Partnership.
Operating Partnership is managed by the Compasgpie general partner. At September 30, 2013 whadly owned: 282 irservice office
industrial and retail properties, comprising 30.dliom square feet; 592cres of undeveloped land suitable for future dgwakent, of whic
496 acres are considered core assets; and foae aféivelopment properties. In addition, we ownéera@sts ( 50.0% or less) in 23 3p¥vice
office properties, a rental residential developnpoperty and 1&cres of undeveloped land suitable for future dgwalent, which includes
12.5% interest in a 261,000 square foot office prtyp directly owned by the Company (not includedtlie Operating Partnership’
Consolidated Financial Statements). We are bas&aleigh, North Carolina, and our properties angettigpment land are located in Flori
Georgia, Missouri, North Carolina, Pennsylvani auth Carolina, Tennesee and Virginia. Additional information about wende found c
our website atvww.highwoods.com Information on our website is not part of thisa@erly Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticpédar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section. You can identify forward-loak statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue’dr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isumgested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot agsuréhat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achievafthen considering such forwaldeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofdhg
important factors that could cause our actual tegaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

* we may not be able to lease or release secondajmmespace, defined as previously occupied sgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old leases;

* we may not be able to lease our newly construatéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agipéilly anticipatec

e« we may not be able to complete development, aderisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

» development activity by our competitors in our &Rrig markets could result in an excessive supplyftite, industrial and ret:
properties relative to customer demand;

e our markets may suffer declines in economic grc
e unanticipated increases in interest rates coullct@se our debt service co
e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

e we may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstisng debt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also vevhe other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in 8062 Annual Report on Form }-Given these uncertainties, you should not plagut

reliance on forward-looking statements. We underta& obligation to publicly release the resultsany revisions to these forwaloeking
statements to reflect any future events or circamsts or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipateshts.
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Executive Summary

Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
» owning highgquality, differentiated real estate assets in #eikfill business districts in our core mark

» improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset mareagenost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in kefjlli business districts that improve the overalktjty of our portfolio and gener:
attractive returns over the long term for our stoulkers;

» selectively disposing of properties no longer cdesgd to be core assets primarily due to locatige, quality and/or overall strate
fit; and

* maintaining a conservative, flexible balance shett ample liquidity to meet our funding needs ayndwth prospect

While we own and operate a limited number of indaktaind retail properties, our operating resuéépehd heavily on successfully leas
and operating our office properties. Economic glowhd employment levels in our core markets are \gitidcontinue to be importa
determinative factors in predicting our future adang results.

The key components affecting our rental and otkgemues are average occupancy, rental rates, levegst recovery income, ni
developments placed in service, acquisitions asgaditions. Average occupancy generally increasesgl times of improving econon
growth, as our ability to lease space outpacesnges that occur upon the expirations of existiegsks. Average occupancy gene
declines during times of slower economic growth,emwmew vacancies tend to outpace our ability tedespace. Asset acquisitic
dispositions and new developments placed in sediteetly impact our rental revenues and could icbmaur average occupancy, depen
upon the occupancy rate of the properties thahegeired, sold or placed in service. A further aador of the predictability of future reveni
is the expected lease expirations of our portfdli®a result, in addition to seeking to increaseaMerage occupancy by leasing current ve
space, we also must concentrate our leasing effartenewing leases on expiring space. For moognmdtion regarding our lease expiratic
see "Properties - Lease Expirations" in our 2012w&h Report. Our occupancy declined from 90.9% etdinber 31, 2012 to 90.08b
September 30, 203 imarily due to a scheduled expiration of a lacgstomer in Tampa, FL and the acquisition of reédyi low occupie
buildings in Atlanta, GA, Nashville, TN and OrlandeL in the second and third quarters and the dispa of relatively high occupie
industrial buildings in Atlanta, GA.

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagepancy proportionally depends upon whether rentensigned new and rene
leases are higher or lower than the rents undepraous leases. Annualized rental revenues frecorsd generation leases expiring du
any particular year are generally less than 15%uoftotal annual rental revenues. The followinddatets forth information regarding sec
generation leases signed during the third quafte2043 (we define second generation leases as leasesnatithcustomers, renewals
existing customers for space that has been prdyimezupied under our ownership and leases witpeesto vacant space in acqui
buildings):

Office Industrial Retail
New Renewal New Renewal New Renewal
Leased space (in rentable square feet) 251,37 977,13 41,54« 42,16¢ 6,042 7,39(
Square foot weighted average term (in years) 6.3 6.C 5.2 1.8 10.2 2C
Base rents (per square foat) $ 242¢ $ 23.2¢ $ 421 % 6.6 $ 5161 $ 38.37
Rent concessions (per square fqot) (0.79) (0.39) (0.30 — — —
GAAP rents (per square foat) $ 235z $ 2281 $ 397 % 6.6 $ 5167 $ 38.3i
Tenant improvements (per square fqof) $ 27¢ % 17t % 1.0¢ $ 017 $ 6.2¢ $ 0.72
$ 09t $ 06z $ 017 $ 0.0¢ $ 028 $ 1.3

Leasing commissions (per square fqof)

(1) Weighted average per rentable square foot on amahbasis over the lease te
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Compared to previous leases, annual GAAP rentadar and renewal leases combined were $23.01 parssdot, or 9.4%igher, fo
office leases, $5.31 per square foot, or 9.1% lpfeerindustrial leases and $44.35 per square fwat7.3% higher, for retail leases.

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and cretifay customer base. We have an internal guidelimereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically reete with the Company's Board of Directors. Curgntio customer accounts for m
than 3% of our revenues other than the Federal @owent , which accounted for less than 10@P6ur revenues on an annualized basi
of September 30, 2013 .

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general ahdinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesiatdode impairments of real estate assets. Rentglgoty expenses are expenses asso!
with our ownership and operation of rental progartand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
maintenance, repairs and utilities, and expensasdih not vary based on occupancy, such as profseds and insurance. Depreciation
amortization is a noesash expense associated with the ownership oprepkrty and generally remains relatively consiséaith year, unle
we buy, place in service or sell assets, since epgatiate our properties and related building @ndrt improvement assets on a stralijia-
basis over fixed lives. General and administraéixpenses, net of amounts capitalized, consist pitinef management and employee sale
and other personnel costs, corporate overheadbaigetérm incentive compensation.

We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibdgahce sheet that allows us to capitalize on falerdevelopment and acquisit
opportunities as they arise. We have announceddimmencement of $205.6 milliaf new development in 2013. Such projects wouldhe
placed in service until 2015 or beyond. To dat20i3, we have acquired $548.5 million of properties sold $196.8 million of nocere
assets. We anticipate selling up to an additioB8l illion of noneore properties during the remainder of 2013. Weeggdly seek to acqui
and develop assets that are consistent with oategjic Plan, improve the average quality of ourraWgortfolio and deliver consistent ¢
sustainable value for our stockholders over thgtenm. Whether or not an asset acquisition or neveld@ment results in higher per st
net income or FFO in any given period depends upommber of factors, including whether the net apieg income for any such per
exceeds the actual cost of capital used to findme@cquisition. Forward-looking information regagi2013operating performance contair
below under "Results of Operations" excludes theaich of any potential acquisitions or disposititimst are completed during the remair
of 2013.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatigere $23.9 million , or 19.3% , higher in thedhjuarter of 201Zs compared
2012 primarily due to recent acquisitions, which accedhfor $22.5 million of the increase, and the redtgn of $1.1 million of deferre
leasing commission income that was received in eotion with the acquisition of our joint venturerfpeer's 60.0% interest in the HIWWEC
Orlando, LLC joint venture. This amount relateddasing fees that were scheduled to have beentgaisl by the joint venture over the t
of leases signed before the transaction.
Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $9.5 mijlar 20.6% , higher in the third quarter of 2@E3compared to 20&imarily due t
recent acquisitions, which accounted for $9.1 millof the increase, and higher same property dpgraxpenses of $0.6 million. Sa
property operating expenses were higher in the dnirarter of 2013 as compared to 2@tnarily due to higher repairs and maintenance

contract services, partly offset by lower utilities

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neggress rental property and other expenses exgressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was lower at 62.4% for the thirargu of 2013 as compared to 62.8% for the thirargu of 2012 .

Depreciation and amortization was $11.1 milliorr 28.9% , higher in the third quarter of 2013 ampared to 201primarily due t
recent acquisitions.

General and administrative expenses were $0.8omillior 7.8% , lower in the third quarter of 20E3campared to 203&imarily due t
lower incentive compensation, partly offset by l@ghalaries and acquisition costs.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense was relatively unchanged in tird tjuarter of 2013 as compared to 20 to higher average debt balances
financing obligation interest expense offset bydowverage interest rates and higher capitalizedest.

Other Income

Other income was $0.4 million , or 19.1% , lowertire third quarter of 2013 as compared to 2@titnarily due to a bankrupt
settlement in 2012.

Gain on Acquisition of Controlling I nterest in Unconsolidated Affiliate

We recorded a gain on acquisition of controllingerast in unconsolidated affiliate of $7.5 milliam the third quarter of 2018ue tc
acquiring our joint venture partner's 60.0% inteneshe HIW-KC Orlando, LLC joint venture.

Equity in Earnings/(Losses) of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffiis was $4.5 million lower in the third quartér2013 as compared to 20p2imarily
due to our share of impairment of real estate assetan office property in our DLF | joint ventuoé $3.5 million, which resulted from
change in the assumed timing of future dispositaord the acquisition of our joint venture partn&®0% interest in the HIVKC Orlando
LLC joint venture in the third quarter of 2013.

Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatimese $15.0 million higher in the third quarter2ffl3 as compared to 20#iRe to th
net effect of our disposition activity.

Earnings Per Common Share - Diluted

Diluted earnings per common share was $0.18 , ®%1 higher in the third quarter of 2013 as coragao 201Xue to an increase
net income for the reasons discussed above, dffsah increase in the weighted average Common Slatstanding from the 2012 and 2
issuances under our equity sales agreements ardithest 2013 Common Stock offering.
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatwere $47.9 million , or 13.0% , higher in theenmonths ended September 2013
as compared to 20J&imarily due to recent acquisitions, which acceudifior $46.6 million of the increase, and the rexton of $1.1 millior
of deferred leasing commission income that wasiveden connection with the acquisition of our jpirenture partnes 60.0% interest in tl
HIW-KC Orlando, LLC joint venture. This amount relatedeasing fees that were scheduled to have bddrtgas by the joint venture o\
the term of leases signed before the transaction.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $17.7omillior 13.2% , higher in the nine months endede®aiper 30, 2013s compared
2012 primarily due to recent acquisitions, whicntcitouted $18.0 million to the net increase.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neggress rental property and other expenses exgressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was slightly lower at 63.5% forrnime months ended September 30, 2013 , as coma316% for thenine months endk
September 30, 2012 .

Depreciation and amortization was $19.7 millionm 18.8% , higher in the nine months ended Septe®®e2013 as compared 2012
primarily due to recent acquisitions.

General and administrative expenses were $0.4omillior 1.2% , lower in the nine months ended Sepé 30, 201&s compared
2012 primarily due to lower incentive compensatioartly offset by higher salaries and acquisitiosts.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense was $1.8 million , or 2.5% , lowmethe nine months ended September 30, 2013 apareah to 201drimarily due t
lower average interest rates and higher capitaliziedest, partly offset by higher average debabeds.

Other Income

Other income was $0.1 million , or 2.5% , lowertli® nine months ended September 30, 2013 as cothfra012primarily due to
decrease in interest income on notes receivablgtires from the 2012 repayment of a secured loaderta our DLF | joint venture in 20
and a bankruptcy settlement in 2012, partly offsea higher loss on debt extinguishment in 2012.

Gain on Acquisition of Controlling I nterest in Unconsolidated Affiliate

We recorded a gain on acquisition of controllinderest in unconsolidated affiliate of $7.5 millian the nine months endks
September 30, 2013 due to acquiring our joint venpartner's 60.0% interest in the HIW-KC OrlandoC joint venture.

Equity in Earnings/(Losses) of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffils was $4.5 million lower in the nine months eth@eptember 30, 203 compare
to 2012primarily due to our share of impairments of resthée assets on certain office properties in ouF Djoint venture of $4.5 million i
the first and third quarters of 2013 and the adtiorsof our joint venture partner’s 60.0% interésthe HIWKC Orlando, LLC joint ventut
in the third quarter of 2013. Partly offsettingstiecrease was our share of impairments of realeeassets on two office properties in
DLF | joint venture of $1.0 million in the first quter of 2012. These impairments were due to agsham the assumed timing of fut
dispositions and/or leasing assumptions.

I mpairments of Real Estate Assetsin Discontinued Operations

Impairments of real estate assets in discontinyestadions were $2.2 million higher in the nine nfienénded September 30, 2043
compared to 2018ue to impairments of $1.1 million on seven indasproperties in Atlanta, GA in the first quartefr2013 and $1.1 millic
on four properties in a single office park in WmstSalem, NC in the second quarter of 2013. Theseiimpats were due to a change in
assumed timing of future dispositions and leassspmptions. We recorded no such impairments ifirgtenine months of 2012.

Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatimese $22.9 million higher in the nine months en&eptember 30, 20185 compare
to 2012 due to the net effect of our dispositiotivitg.

Earnings Per Common Share - Diluted
Diluted earnings per common share was $0.27 , d982 higher in the nine months ended Septembe2@®08 as compared to 20iiRe

to an increase in net income for the reasons discbabove, offset by an increase in the weightedage Common Shares outstanding
the 2012 and 2013 issuances under our equity agteements and the August 2013 Common Stock offerin
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexiéance sheet with access to multiple sourcesbf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our revolving credit facility. 8/generally use rents received from customers d four operating expenses, recur
capital expenditures and distributions. To fundpanty acquisitions, development activity or builglinenovations and repay debt u
maturity, we may use current cash balances, ssditgsobtain new debt and/or issue equity. Our deherally consists of mortgage d
unsecured debt securities, bank term loans andworgs under our revolving credit facility.

Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢
forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bausands):

Nine Months Ended

September 30,
2013 2012 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 186,51: $ 138,01¢ $ 48,49
Net Cash (Used In) Investing Activities (401,579 (94,75() (306,829
Net Cash Provided By/(Used In) Financing Activities 232,96¢ (45,37() 278,33t
Total Cash Flows $ 17,90¢ $ (2,102 $ 20,00¢

In calculating net cash related to operating aibtisj depreciation and amortization, which are oash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagqubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otirim@me, as discussed more fully above under “Resaf Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlates to capitalized costs incurred for leasing major building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitiéll generally exceed cash provided by investtjvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distidmstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadlfates to distributions, incurrence and repayneémtebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and edeStock. As discussed previously, we use afsigmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdbénoutstanding balances of debt during a perigetags generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tue@ activity. We generally use our revolving ctefdicility for daily working capite
purposes, which means that during any given peiliodyrder to minimize interest expense, we may mcaignificant repayments a
borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

The change in net cash related to operating detivit the nine months ended September 30, 20&8rapared to 201&as primarily du
to higher net cash from the operations of acquiregerties and lower cash paid for operating exgeins2013.

The change in net cash related to investing aiets/ih the nine months ended September 30, 20t8rapared to 201®%as primarily du
to higher acquisition and development activity &igher expenditures on tenant and building improsets in 2013, partly offset by higl
net proceeds from dispositions of real estate aisget higher distributions of capital from uncoidatied affiliates in 2013.

The change in net cash related to financing ai@#&in the nine months ended September 30, 20&8rapared to 201&as primarily du

to higher net borrowings, higher proceeds fromigseance of Common Stock and contributions fromcoatrolling interests in consolidal
affiliates in 2013, partly offset by higher dividison Common Stock in 2013.
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Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjzitdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

September 30, December 31,

2013 2012
Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 2,050,06 $ 1,859,16.
Financing obligations $ 28,19: $ 29,35¢
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,077 $ 29,077
Common Stock outstanding 89,91: 80,31:
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 2,94¢ 3,73¢
Per share stock price at period end $ 3531 $% 33.4¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 3,278,711 $ 2,811,27
Total capitalization $ 538604 $ 4,728,86!

At September 30, 2013, our mortgages and notesbfapand outstanding preferred stock representd®@8f our total capitalization ai
42.6% of the undepreciated book value of our assets

Our mortgages and notes payable as of Septemb@028, consisted of $591.8 milliaf secured indebtedness with a weighted avt
interest rate of 5.03% and $1,458.2 million of wwsed indebtedness with a weighted average intesst of 4.14%. The secure
indebtedness was collateralized by real estatesasdh an aggregate undepreciated book value o1 £9million .

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofréends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingditéacility, which had $ 190.5 millioof
availability at October 21, 2013 . Our shtetm liquidity requirements primarily consist of empting expenses, interest and princ
amortization on our debt, distributions and capégbenditures, including building improvement copstmant improvement costs and le
commissions. Building improvements are capital €éstmaintain or enhance existing buildings nofdglly related to a specific custonr
Tenant improvements are the costs required to mustospace for the specific needs of customersakitieipate that our available cash
cash equivalents and cash provided by operatinyitées, together with cash available from borrogsnunder our revolving credit facili
will be adequate to meet our short-term liquidgguirements.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the ratient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving credit facility, term loans and other ansred debt), funding of existing and new builditeyelopment or land infrastructure proje
and funding acquisitions of buildings and developmiand. Our expected future capital expendituiesstarted and/or committed n
development projects were $199.5 million at Sepem30, 2013 Additionally, we may, from time to time, retirerae or all of our remainir
outstanding Preferred Stock and/or unsecured asttrisies through redemptions, open market repwehgorivately negotiated acquisiti
or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needstigh a combination of;

» cash flow from operating activitie

e bank term loans and borrowings under our revolgirgglit facility;

» theissuance of unsecured d

» theissuance of secured di

» the issuance of equity securities by the Comparth@Operating Partnership;

» the disposition of norere asset
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Acquisition and Disposition Activity

During the third quarter of 2013, we acquired aintj venture partner's 60.0% interest in the H@-Orlando, LLC joint venture, whic
owns five office properties in Orlando, FL encongag 1.3 million square feet, for a net purchaseepof $112.8 million The purchase pri
included the assumption of secured debt recordéaratalue of $127.9 million , with an effectiveterest rate of 3.11%This debt matures
July 2014 . We previously accounted for our 40i@%rest in this joint venture using the equity hoet of accounting. As a result of acquil
a controlling interest in this joint venture, ouepiously held equity interest was remeasuredfairavalue of $75.2 milliorresulting in a gai
of $7.5 million .

During the third quarter of 2013, we also acquired:
» an office property in Nashville, TN encompassi#f),000 square feet for a net purchase price 59 $1million; anc

* our DLF Il joint venture partner's 57.0% intdrastwo office properties in Atlanta, GA encompags505,000square feet for a r
purchase price of $44.5 million , including thewumption of secured debt recorded at fair value3¥.6¢ million, with an effectiv
interest rate of 3.34% . This debt matures in APGiL5 .

We expensed $0.8 millioof acquisition costs (included in general and adshiative expenses) related to these transactiims.asse
acquired and liabilities assumed were recordediatvilue as determined by management based onmafmn available at the acquisit
date and on current assumptions as to future apesatWe have invested or intend to invest an adit $ 8.9 millionin the aggregate
planned building improvements and future tenantroupments committed under existing leases acquirdfiese building acquisitions. Ba:
on the total anticipated investment of $ 316.3iomill, the weighted average capitalization rate forabguisitions of these buildings, wh
were 82.7% occupied on average as of the respeciibging dates, is 7.4%sing projected GAAP net operating income for 20IHes:
forward-looking statements are subject to risks amekrtainties. See “Disclosure Regarding Forwawdling Statements.”

In the normal course of business, we regularly watal potential acquisitions. As a result, from timeime, we may have one or m
potential acquisitions under consideration thatianearying stages of evaluation, negotiation oe diligence, including potential acquisitic
that are subject to ndpinding letters of intent or enforceable contracdd@nsummation of any transaction is subject to eber o
contingencies, including the satisfaction of cusaoyrclosing conditions. No assurances can be peovidat we will acquire any propertie:
the future. Acquired properties may fail to perfoinmaccordance with our expectations due to legseisk, renovation cost risks and of
factors. In addition, the renovation and improvetrmasts we incur in bringing an acquired propenpytol market standards may exceed
estimates. Acquired properties could change ouidity position, capital resources and revenuesexpenses.

During the third quarter of 2013, we sold:

» an office property in Tampa, FL for a sale prdes11.6 million and recorded a gain on dispositad discontinued operations $1.2
million ; and

» sixteen industrial properties and a land paiced single transaction in Atlanta, GA for a salec@ of $91.6 million (beforeés0.z
million in closing credits to buyer for unfundedh&nt improvements and after $0.3 millionclosing credits to buyer for free rel
We recorded gains on disposition of discontinuedragions of $36.7 milliorrelated to the industrial properties and a gai
disposition of property of less than $0.1 milliedated to the land parcel.

On October 2, 2013 , we sold an office propertpfianta, GA for a sale price of $13.8 milli@md expect to record a gain on dispos
of discontinued operations of $3.0 million .

On October 24, 2013 , we sold four office propertie Winston-Salem, NC for a sale price of $6.2iorland expect to record a gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $0.1 iwil.

On October 28, 2013 , we sold an office propertyMimston-Salem, NC for a sale price of $5.3 millmmd expect to record a gain
disposition of discontinued operations of $2.5 iwil.

Financing Activity
During 2013, we entered into separate equity saggsements with each of Wells Fargo Securities, LBB&T Capital Markets,
division of BB&T Securities, LLC, Comerica Secueti Inc., Jefferies LLC and Piper Jaffray & Co. iDgrthe third quarter of 2013the

Company issued 904,809 shares of Common Stockatemage gross sales price of $35.81 per share and
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received net proceeds, after sales commission83bP million . We paid an aggregate of $0.5 millio sales commissions to Wells Fa
Securities, LLC and Jefferies LLC during the thipgarter of 2013 .

On August 13, 2013, the Company issued 4,312,5@€eshof Common Stock in a public offering and reeéinet proceeds @&150.¢
million . The Company used the net proceeds from the onfféd repay borrowings outstanding under our unsectevolving credit facility
to fund property acquisitions and development @gtand for general corporate purposes.

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in July 2046d includes an accordion feature that al
for an additional $ 75.0 millionf borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occurredhaue
an option to extend the maturity for an additiopadr. The interest rate at our current credit gatiis LIBOR plus 130 basis points and
annual facility fee is 25 basis points. The interage and facility fee are based on the highghefpublicly announced ratings from Moot
Investors Service or Standard & Poor's RatingsiGesv We use our revolving credit facility for warg capital purposes and for the short-
term funding of our development and acquisitionvitgtand, in certain instances, the repaymenttb&odebt. The continued ability to borr
under the revolving credit facility allows us toickly capitalize on strategic opportunities at skterm interest rates. There wa2@6.<
million and $ 284.4 million outstanding under oavelving credit facility at September 30, 2013 &wtober 21, 2013 respectively. At bot
September 30, 2013 and October 21, 2013 , we h@adl $nillion of outstanding letters of credit, which reduces #wailability on ou
revolving credit facility. As a result, the unuseapacity of our revolving credit facility at Septeen 30, 2013 and October 21, 204:8s ¢
268.5 million and $ 190.5 million , respectively.

During the third quarter of 2013, we prepaid withpanalty the remaining $114.7 million balance wn secured mortgage loans bea
interest at a weighted average rate of 5.75% tlea¢ wriginally scheduled to mature in December 2013

On October 1, 2013 , our consolidated HighwoodsKdiaAssociates, LLC joint venture prepaid withonplty the remainin$32.:
million balance on four secured mortgage loansibganterest at a weighted average rate of 5.#@86were originally scheduled to matur.
January 2014 .

On October 3, 2013 , we prepaid without penaltgeused mortgage loan with a fair market value of.86million bearing an effecti
interest rate of 5.12% that was originally scheddutemature in January 2014 .

We regularly evaluate the financial condition of financial institutions that participate in ouedit facilities and as counterparties ur
interest rate swap agreements using publicly availanformation. Based on this review, we currergipect these financial institutions
perform their obligations under our existing fa@i$ and swap agreements.

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with the covenamtd ather requirements with respect to our debthdlgh we expect to remain
compliance with these covenants and ratios foeatlthe next year, depending upon our future tipgrperformance, property and financ
transactions and general economic conditions, waateassure you that we will continue to be in chamge.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating cowsiaand various financ
requirements. Upon an event of default on the rénglcredit facility, the lenders having at leaét ®% of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriogs then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergedffect our ability to fund our operations.

The Operating Partnership has the following unstmotes currently outstanding ($ in thousands):

Carrying Stated Interest Effective Interest

Face Amount Amount Rate Rate
Notes due in 2017 $ 379,68" $ 379,28 5.85(% 5.88(%
Notes due in 2018 $ 200,000 % 200,00( 7.50(% 7.50(%
Notes due in 2023 $ 250,000 $ 247,55t 3.625% 3.752%

The indenture that governs these outstanding metgsres us to comply with customary operating cewes and various financial rati
The trustee or the holders of at least 25i@%rincipal amount of either series of bonds ceceterate the principal amount of such series
written notice of a default that remains uncuredra60 days.
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We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abitityay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otw/enants that restrict our ability to take agsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

See "Acquisition and Disposition Activity" for a sleription of the acquisitions of (1) our joint varg partner's 60.0% interest in our
Orlando joint venture and (2) two office propertieAtlanta, GA from our DLF Il joint venture.

During the third quarter of 2013, our DLF | joingnture recorded impairment of real estate asséi$®8 millionon an office property
Orlando, FL. We recorded $3.5 milliaas our share of this impairment charge throughtedniearnings of unconsolidated affiliates. 7
impairment was due to a change in the assumedgiofifiuture disposition, which reduced the futurpected cash flows from the impai
property.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There were no changes made by management to ti@lcaccounting policies in the nine months en@eagtember 30, 2013For ¢
description of our critical accounting estimates 8Management's Discussion and Analysis of Firar@ondition and Results of Operations -
Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2012 Annuaport on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Information

The Company believes that Funds from Operations@'F and FFO per share are beneficial to managementredtors and a
important indicators of the performance of any 8gREIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calculaggokide such factors as deprecial
amortization and impairments of real estate ass®dsgains or losses from sales of operating reéateeassets, which can vary among ow
of identical assets in similar conditions basechatorical cost accounting and useful life estirsataey facilitate comparisons of opera
performance between periods and between other REWBnagement believes that historical cost accagnfor real estate assets
accordance with GAAP implicitly assumes that thtugeof real estate assets diminishes predictably tiwme. Since real estate values t
historically risen or fallen with market conditignaany industry investors and analysts have coresidthe presentation of operating res
for real estate companies that use historical @ospunting to be insufficient on a staaldne basis. As a result, management believegHe
use of FFO and FFO per share, together with theinexd] GAAP presentations, provides a more completderstanding of the Compar
performance relative to its competitors and a niof@med and appropriate basis on which to makeésdets involving operating, financi
and investing activities.

FFO and FFO per share are M6AAP financial measures and therefore do not regmtaset income or net income per share as defig
GAAP. Net income and net income per share as difineGAAP are the most relevant measures in deténgiithe Company's operat
performance because FFO and FFO per share inctjdstments that investors may deem subjective, sascadding back expenses suc
depreciation, amortization and impairments. Furtiere, FFO per share does not depict the amounatitaties directly to the stockhold
benefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shoelder be considered as alternatives to net incametdncome per share as indicatot
the Company's operating performance.

The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WEO as defined by the National Association of IRestate Investment Trus
which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
* Less net income attributable to noncontrolling iests in consolidated affiliat

» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie
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e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of deprieciaberating properties and acquisition of coningllinterest in unconsolidat
affiliate, plus impairments on depreciable opeatoroperties and excluding items that are claskifie extraordinary items uni
GAAP;

e Plus or minus our share of adjustments, includirepreciation and amortization of depreciable opegatproperties, fc
unconsolidated partnerships and joint venturesefiect funds from operations on the same basig); a

e Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and @iradion and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated afféiatrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company includes net incatteébutable to noncontrolling interests in thee@gting Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard ingustactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.

The following table sets forth the Company's FFBQFavailable for common stockholders and FFO abkiléor common stockholde
per share ($ in thousands, except per share ampunts

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Funds from operations:
Net income $ 56,066 $ 3579 $ 99,407 $ 68,62¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates (203%) (159 (599 (56€)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 47,56: 36,48: 128,67 109,13«
(Gain) on acquisition of controlling interest inaomsolidated affiliate (7,457 — (7,457 —
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 1,62¢ 2,02¢ 5,73 5,801

Impairments of depreciable properties 3,481 — 4,507 1,00z

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties — — (437) —
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 665 1,61( 3,16¢ 7,10¢

Impairments of depreciable properties — — 2,19¢ —

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (37,946 (22,93¢) (52,359 (29,455
Funds from operations 63,80¢ 52,82: 182,85t 161,65(
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627) (2,887 (2,887)
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 63,18: $ 52,19t ¢ 180,977 $ 159,76¢
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 0.7¢C $ 06t $ 207 $ 2.0¢
Weighted average shares outstanding) 90, 76¢ 80,49 87,44 78,56t

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdikiCommon Stock equivaler

In addition, the Company believes net operatingoime from continuing operations (“NOI"and same property NOI are usi
supplemental measures of the Compangtoperty operating performance because such anepriovide a performance measure of
revenues and expenses directly involved in ownég estate assets and provides a perspective natdiately apparent from net income
FFO. The Company defines NOI as rental and otheemaes from continuing operations, less rental @rtypand other expenses fr
continuing operations. The Company defines cash &N Ol less straighine rent and lease termination fees. Other REIay ose differer
methodologies to calculate NOI and same property. NO

Our same property portfolio currently consists 6% 2n-service office, industrial and retail propestencompassing 24.9 milliaguar
feet that were wholly owned during the entiretytlod periods presented (from January 1, 2012 toeSdpdr 30, 2013 ). In our 20¥hnua
Report on Form 10-K, our same property portfoliosisted of 284 in-service office, industrial anthileproperties encompassi2§.8 millior
square feet that were wholly owned during the etytiof the periods presented therein (from JantiaB011 to December 31, 20)2The
change in our same property portfolio was due ¢oattidition of eight office
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properties encompassing 2.1 million square feetiaed during 2011 and two newly developed officepgarties encompassirj2 million
square feet placed in service during 2011 , offsethe removal of eight office properties and 28uistrial properties encompassifd
million square feet classified as discontinued apens during 2013 .

Rental and other revenues related to propertiesymmir same property portfolio were $29.2 milliand $5.3 million for thehree month
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectivedly$61.6 million and $13.0 million for the nine ntles ended September 30, 20dr&
2012 , respectively. Rental property and other egpe related to properties not in our same propestifolio were $11.6 million an#2.€
million for the three months ended September 3@328hd 2012 , respectively, and $25.0 million add$nillion for thenine months endt
September 30, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtlasame property NOI:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of property and condominiums and
acquisition of controlling interest in and equity n earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated
affiliates $ 12,71« $ 9,052 $ 39,78 $ 27,22i
Other income (1,550 (1,91¢ (4,786 (4,910
Interest expense 23,67: 23,61 70,82¢ 72,66
General and administrative expenses 8,96¢ 9,72 27,94¢ 28,29¢
Depreciation and amortization 48,12« 37,04: 130,39( 110,65t
Net operating income from continuing operations 91,92¢ 77,51« 264,15¢ 233,92
Less — non same property and other net operatoagria (17,579 (2,499 (36,587) (5,499
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 74,358 $ 75020 $ 227,570 $ 228,42¢
Rental and other revenues $ 147,29 $ 123,41t $ 41596. $ 368,02¢
Rental property and other expenses 55,36¢ 45,90 151,80: 134,10:
Total net operating income from continuing operatims 91,92¢ 77,51« 264,15¢ 233,92
Less — non same property and other net operatoayrie (17,579 (2,499 (36,587) (5,499
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 74358 $ 75,02( $ 227,57. $ 228,42
Total same property net operating income from caritig operations $ 74358 $ 75,02( $ 227,57. $ 228,42
Less — straight-line rent and lease terminatios fee (1,967 (3,279 (8,200 (13,400
Same property cash net operating income from contiring operations $ 7238t § 71,747 § 219,37 §$ 215,02
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding our market risk as ofd@®, 2013, see "Quantitative and Qualitative Disates About Market Risk" in ¢
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyipetiended June 30, 2013.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure cositaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatiation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportéunvitie time periods specified in -
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CR@ tancluded that the disclosure controls and plees of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoéthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting &athe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. There were no dawng internal control over financial reporting igr the three months end
September 30, 2018hat materially affected, or are reasonably likedymaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtwger financia
reporting. There were also no changes in interoatrol over financial reporting during the three ntitts ended September 30, 2aha:
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenilly affect, the Operating Partnership's ingmontrol over financial reporting.

49




Table of Contents
PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

During the third quarter of 2013 , the Company éssan aggregate of 716,63Bares of Common Stock to holders of Common Un
the Operating Partnership upon the redemption dikex number of Common Units in private offeringseexpt from the registratic
requirements pursuant to Section 4(2) of the SeesrAct. Each of the holders of Common Units wasecredited investor under Rule 50
the Securities Act. The resale of such shares egistered by the Company under the Securities Act.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
12.1 Statement re;: Computation of Ratios of they@any
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opega#artnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8abanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pasimier
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #z#banes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #sbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pasimier
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8zbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dailysed this report to be signed o
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: /sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole genegatmer

By: Is/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: October 29, 2013
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings/(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates
Fixed charges
Capitalized interest
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:
Contractual interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligations interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest component of rental expense

Total fixed charges
Preferred Stock dividends

Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends

Exhibit 12.1

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2013

47,22t
74,66
(1,940

3,12¢

123,08:

67,87¢
2,86(
87
1,94C
1,897

74,66:
1,881

76,54+

1.65

1.61




HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings/(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates
Fixed charges
Capitalized interest
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:
Contractual interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligations interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest component of rental expense

Total fixed charges
Preferred Unit distributions

Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions

Exhibit 12.2

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2013

47,22t
74,66
(1,940

3,10¢

123,06:

67,87¢
2,86(
87
1,94C
1,897

74,66:
1,881

76,54+

1.65

1.61




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 29, 2013

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 29, 2013

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 29, 2013

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: October 29, 2013

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwaderoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfar period ende8eptember 3
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report),Edward J. Fritsch, President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 90t Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

October 29, 2013




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwaderoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Qtfar period ende8eptember 3
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursua8ta06 of the Sarban&3xley Act o
2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

October 29, 2013




Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended September 30, 2013 as filed with #wifties and Exchange Commission on the date héren“Report”),l, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBagtnership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 db#nbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner

October 29, 2013




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended September 30, 2013 as filed with #miffties and Exchange Commission on the date h@ten“Report”),l, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeHighwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef @perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8@tdarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officethe General Partner

October 29, 2013



